

# MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the  
**LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY**  
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library  
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from scanned originals with text recognition applied  
(searchable text may contain some errors and/or omissions)

ACTS AND RESOLVES

AS PASSED BY THE

Eighty-sixth and Eighty-seventh  
Legislatures

OF THE

STATE OF MAINE

From April 1, 1933, to April 6, 1935

AND MISCELLANEOUS STATE PAPERS

---

Published by the Secretary of State, in conjunction  
with the Revisor of Statutes in accordance with the  
Resolves of the Legislature approved June 28, 1820,  
March 18, 1840, March 16, 1842, and Acts approved  
August 6, 1930 and April 2, 1931.

---

KENNEBEC JOURNAL  
AUGUSTA, MAINE  
1935

**PUBLIC LAWS**  
OF THE  
**STATE OF MAINE**

As Passed by the Eighty-Seventh Legislature

**1935**

[supplied from page 201 of volume]

## Chapter 106.

## AN ACT Relating to Bang's Disease.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

Sec. 1. R. S., c. 40, § 11, amended. Section 11 of chapter 40 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 11. Dairy, breeding, and show cattle to be tested. All cattle that are to be shown or exhibited, in any state agricultural show, shall be tested with tuberculin, within 3 years of the opening date of the exhibition where they are to be shown; such cattle except oxen and steers must also show a negative test for Bang's Disease, said test to be made at the state laboratory under direction of the division of animal industry within 60 days prior to the date they are to be shown except that a herd accredited for Bang's Disease can be shown if it has been tested within 1 year of the date they are to be shown and no reactors were found. Such ~~test~~ tests shall be made under the direction of the ~~commissioner of agriculture,~~ division of animal industry, ~~who~~ which shall furnish a certificate of such ~~test~~ tests to the owner or owners of such animals. State agricultural associations that receive any aid from the state shall demand a certificate of ~~test~~ tests, duly authorized by the ~~commissioner of agriculture,~~ said division, from owners of cattle that are to compete for prizes in accordance with the above, under penalty of forfeiture of such aid; but this provision shall not apply to calves less than 1 year old.'

Sec. 2. R. S., c. 40, § 17, amended. Section 17 of chapter 40 of the revised statutes is hereby repealed and the following enacted in place thereof:

'Sec. 17. Permit and test papers required for cattle entering the state. No cattle shall be allowed to enter this state, from any other state or country, either for dairying purposes, breeding purposes or for slaughter, except cattle in transit under the control of the federal government, without a permit duly authorized by the chief of the division of animal industry, which permit shall accompany the shipment. All such cattle must be accompanied by a copy of a test chart showing that they have passed a tuberculin test within 1 year. If the test chart shows that the cattle came from an accredited herd, or a herd that has passed a clean test under state and federal supervision within 1 year, or from a modified accredited area they will not be under restriction after arrival in the state, otherwise they must be held in quarantine by the owner and tuberculin tested at his expense at the expiration of 60 days from date of arrival. A copy of the test chart accompanying the cattle must be approved by the official in charge of live stock sanitary work in the state of origin and sent to the

**CHAP. 108**

chief of the division of animal industry, Augusta. On the tuberculin test chart, or on a separate chart, it must also be shown that the cattle brought into the state have passed a negative test for Bang's Disease within 60 days, or within 1 year if coming from a herd in which no positive or suspicious animals were found on last test and a test of all animals over 6 months of age was made within a year. This regulation applies to all cattle brought into the state by any public or private carrier or driven on foot. Calves under 1 year of age need not be tuberculin tested if they come from an accredited herd but a test chart must accompany giving this information. Cattle for immediate slaughter may be brought into the state without test papers provided the permit so states, but they must be consigned to a reliable person or company and slaughtered within 10 days under inspection that shall be acceptable to the commissioner of agriculture or his duly authorized agent in charge of live stock sanitary work. Whoever violates any provision of this section shall be punished as provided in section 16.'

Approved March 30, 1935.

## Chapter 107.

### AN ACT Relating to the Recordings of County Reports.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

R. S., c. 13, § 67, amended. Section 67 of chapter 13 of the revised statutes is hereby amended to read as follows:

'Sec. 67. Estimates to be recorded and transmitted to secretary of state. Said estimates shall be recorded by their clerk in a book; and a copy thereof shall be signed by the chairman of the county commissioners, and attested by their clerk, who shall transmit it to the office of the secretary of state on or before the ~~1st~~ 15th day of each ~~January~~ February in which the legislature meets, together with the county reports for the 2 preceding years to be by him laid before the legislature.'

Approved March 30, 1935.

## Chapter 108.

### AN ACT to Enable Domestic Mutual Fire Insurance Companies to Obtain Aid From the Federal Intermediate Credit Bank.

*Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine, as follows:*

P. L., 1933, c. 280, amended. Chapter 280 of the public laws of 1933 is hereby amended to read as follows: